STATE OF INDIANA | ) BEFORE THE IOSHA BOARD OF

) SS: SAFETY REVIEW
COUNTY OF MARION ) F 1 L ED
IN THE MATTER OF THE ) MAR 2 @ 2014
COMMISSIONER OF LABOR, ) : .
: Indiana Beard of -
‘ B ) Safety Review
Complainant, ) . .
) CASE DOCKET NO. 13-004
V. )
)
SSI SERVICES, LLC, )
AND ITS SUCCESSORS, )
. . _ )
Respondent. )

FINAL ORDER

| The parties to the above;referenced proceeding, through their duly authorized
representétives, have filed with the Board their Agreed Entry. Th_e Board, beiﬁg duly advised,
now accepts the Réspondent’s vvithdrawal of its Notice of Contest, and adopts the Safety drders
and penalty issued by the Commissioner of Labor, as modified by the Agreed Entry, as its final
order in this matter. | |

-JT IS ORDERED that the Respondent’s withdrawal of its Notice of Contest is accepted
and the Safety ‘Orders and penalty issued by the _Commissioner of Labor, as modified by the

Agreed Entry, ié adopted as a final order.

Dated: Q Q ﬂi&,ﬁff/z 10/ r(/

Do, Dw@g,

Danny Deighton{/Chairman




Copies to:

J. Anthony Hardman

Assistant General Counsel
Department of Labor '

402 W. Washington St., Rm. W195
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Robert R. Foos, Jr.

Lewis Wagner LLP

501 Indiana Avenue, Suite 200
Indianapolis, IN 46202



STATE OF INDIANA ) BEFORE THE TOSHA BOARD OF

)} SS: . SAFETY REVIEW
COUNTY OF MARION ) 'CASE DOCKET NO. 13-004
IN THE MATTER OF: )
- )
COMMISSIONER OF LABOR, )
' ' . ) F I L E D
Complainant, ) .
| ) FER 27 2014
V. )
) indiana Board of
SSI SERVICES, LLC, ) Safety Review
AND ITS SUCCESSORS, )
' )
Respondent. }
' AGREED ENTRY

The parties to the above-captioned proceeding, the Comrmissioner of the Indiana Department of
Labor thereinafter “Complainant”) and SSI Services, LLC (hereihafter “Respondent™), through their
duly authorized representatives, desiring to enter into this Agreed Entry as final settlement of this

mnatter, cio hereby stiptﬂ.ate and agree as follows: -

PARTL

1. From Angust 9, 2012 through January 16, 2013, authorized employees of the Indiana
Department of Labor conducted an inspection at the Respondent’s worksite located at 3700 S. Harding
St., Indianapolis, Indiana 46217, the IPL Generating Station.

2. On January 30, 2013, Complainant issued a Safety Order and Notification of .Penalty
(hereinaﬁf;r “Safety Order”) resulting from Indiana Department of Labor Inspection No. 316485 101 and
alleging that Requndent had violated the Indiana Occgpational Safety and Héalth Act (1C 22-8-1.1 et
seq.} or the standards or rules thereunder. The Safety Order is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is
incorporated herem. |

3. On or about February 12, 2013, Respondént duly and timely petitioned for review of the



Safety Order.
PARTIL
4. The Safety Order consists of Safety Order 1, ltem Nos. 1, 2, 3a, and 3b; and Safety Order 2,
Ttem No. 1. | |
5. Safety Order No. 1, Item No. 1 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 1.C. 22-8-1.1-2 for the use of
compressed air with combustible dust and assesses a total penalty of Four Thousand Nine Hundred
Dollarsg ($4,900).
| 6. Sa.fe;cy Order No. 1, Item No. 2 alleges a “Serious” violation of .C. 22-8-1.1-2 regarding the
-design of dust collection equipment and/or componenits used to convey or collect combustible dust and
assesses a total penalty of Four Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($4.,900).
7. Safety Order No. 1, Item No. 3a alleges a “Serious™ violation of'29-CFR 1910.132(a) and
assesses a total shared penalty, grouped with Item 3b, of Four Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($4,900).
8. Safety Order No. 1, Item No. 3b alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.132(d)(1) and
assesses no addrtional penalty above what is assessed mn Item 3a.
9. The total penalty for Safety Order No. 1 is Fourteen Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars.
($14,700).
10, Safety Order No. 2, Item No. 1 aﬂeges 2 “Knowing” violation of 1.C. 22-8-1.1-2 for control
of static électricity sources and assesses a total penalty of Fifty-Six Thousand Dollars ($56,000).
11. The total penalty for Safety Order No. 2 is Fifly-Six Thousand Dollars ($56,000).
12. The total penalty for Safety Order No. 1 and No. 2 combined is Seventy Thousand Seven
Fundred Dollars (§70,700).
| PART .

13. Safety Order No. 1, Item No. 1 remains unchanged iu its enﬁrc:ty and the penalty remains

Agreed Entry
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Four Thousan& Nine Hundred Do]iars ($4.900).

14. Safety Order Né. 1, Item No. 2 is deleted in its entirety.

15. Safety Order No. 1, Item No. 3a remains unchangéd in its entirety and the peﬁalty remaing
Four Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($4,9OQ).

- 16. Safety Order No. 1, Item No. 3b is deleted in its entirety.

17. Bafety Order No. 2, Item No. 1 is amended by re-classifying itasa “Non-Serious™ violation
of 1.C. 22-8-1.1-2 as otherwise cited and the penglty is reduced to zero (50).

18. The AGREED total penalty for all \riolétions and all subparts thereunder, subject to this
Agreed Entry, is Nine Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars (£9,800).

19. Respondent further agrees to abate deleted Safety Order No. 1, Itcm-No. 3b as cited.

20. All abatement required by the Safety Order, as modified by this Agreed Entry, shall be
certified to, and verified by IOSHA within thirty (30) days of the filing of this Agreed Entry.

21. It 1s understood and agreed by the Respondent and Complainan that this Agreed Entry and
attachments will constitute a final, enforceable OSHA Safety Order(s) and penalties for the purposes of
the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Act (“Act”).

| 22. Respondent confirms Complainant’s right to re-inspect its workplaces, in accordance with
' the Act, and to verify abatement of fhe allegetd violations.
23. Respondent hereby Withdraws its petition for review previously filed in this mafter.
PARTIV.
24; Nothing contained in this Ag:reed Entry shail be construed fo affect Complainant’s
Interpretation of the Act or arty standard or regulation enforced pursuant thereto or the appﬁf:able
classification thereof.

25. Except for this agreement, and matters arising out of this agreement and any other

Agreed Entry
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subsequent IOSHA proceedings between the pattics, ﬁone of the foregoing agreements, statements, ‘
findings, and actions taken by the Respondent shall be deemed an admission by Respondent of the
allegations contained within the Safety Order(s) and Notification(s) of Penalty. I0SHA mspections are
not intended to find the root cause of any accident, but only to discover safety hazards in the work
place. IOSHA malkes no represenmtién thﬁt any hazard cited in this matter caused the fatality of SSI’s
employee. The agreements, statements, findings, and actions taken herein are made in order to
comnpronuse and settle this matter e;onomically and amicably, and they shali not be used for any other
purpose, except as stated herein.

| 26. The invalidity or unenforceability of any section, subsection, clause or provision of this
Agreed Entry does not affect the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, or provisions of this Agfeed
Entry.

27. Respondent, upon full execution of this Agreed Entry, will post this Agreed Entry for three

(3) working days or until abatement is completed, whichever period is longer, plirsuant to Board of

Safety Review Rules of Procedure, 615 IAC 1-2-18(B)3)C).

AGREED this 57 5#:(;}? of February, 2014.

SSI SERVICES, LLC COMMISSIONER OF LABOR
By: %%m g/ By: /
'flmoth Ma‘iey
Printed: Stephen L. Barnes - Deputy ommissiondr —~ I0SHA

Title:  President

Agreed Entry
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Appreved as to Forom:

By: WE% | By: 9 %M

Robert R. Foes, I, ¥ Anthony Hardntdn,
Counsel for Respondent Counsel for Complainant

Agreed Erz!z:y
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EXHIBIT A

Indlana Department of Labor

Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Administration
402 West Washington Street

Room W195

Indianapolis, IN 46204-2751

Phone: 317/232-1979 Fax: 317/233-8509

@Aﬁ%jﬁ sz 7043 10/0 3943 5 zz;e G20 / 34 EE+ m
Safety Order and N0t1f10at10n of Penalty

-

To: ' | _ - Inspection Number: 316485101

SSI Services, LLC, - Inspection Date(s):  08/09/2012 - 01/16/2013
and its snccessars . '

308 South State Avenne ' Issuance Date: 01/30/2013

Tadianapolis, TN 46201 ,,w 7,,3.;,,-4,‘”,,; S '_". e e

The vzolaﬂon(s) descnbed in z‘hls szfezy Order and:
. = Notific cation. ofPenalty s (are ) al.l’eged to have occurred on.
3700 South Harding Strest : . or abouf the day(s) the: mSpecﬁon was made. zmless ;
(IPL Harding Street Generating Stafion) ofhermse mdzcared wzrhm the descnpnon gzven below
Indianapolis, IN 46217 S R , - Lo o

Inspection Site:

An inspection of your place of employment has revealed conditions which we believe do not comply with
the provisions.of the [ndiana Occupational Safety and Health Act (Indiana Code Chapter 22-8-1.1) or the standards

* . or rules adopted thereunder. Accordingly, enclosed please find safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty

describing such violation(s) with references to applicable standards, rules, or provisions of the statute and stating
the amount of any penalty(ies).

Informal Conference-Please be advised that it may be possible to informally settle any potential dispute
without initiating the more elaborate proceedings brought on by a petition for review. Prior to filing a
petition for review, you may request an informal conference concerning any of the results of the inspection.
(safety orders, penalties, abatement dates, efc.) by contacting the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA,
- preferably by telephone, in a prompt manner. Please be advised that a request for an informal conference
cannot extend the fifteen working day period for filing a petition for review. Informal conferences
fregnently r‘esol've any possible disputes, and therefore you are urged to take advantage of this opportunity.
Because of the limited time period and in order to facilitate scheduling, any requests for an informal
conference shenld be made promptly upon your receipt of the safety order(s) and notification( s) of penalty.

Right to Contest - You are bereby also notified that you are entitled to seek administrative review of the safety
order(s), penalty(ies), or both by filing a written petitior for review at the above address postmarked within fifteen
working days of your Iecelpt of the safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty. ("Workmg days" means

I
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Mondays through Fridays, but does not include Saturdays, Sundays, legal holidays under a state statute or days
on which the Indiana Department of Labor's offices are closed doring regular business hours). If you do not file
sucha petition for review (contest), the safety order(s) and penalty(ies) shall be deemed final orders of the Board
of Safety Review and not subject to review by any court or agency. The issuance of a safety order does not
constitute a finding that a violation has occurred unless no petition for review is filed, or if a petition for review
(contest) is filed, it must contain a statement of its basis and should reference the above inspection number. Upon
receipt of your petition for review, we will affirm, amend or dismiss the safety order(s) and notification(s) of
penalty. H we affirm, your petition for review will be granted (unless it was not timely) and the dispute will be .
certified by the Board of Safety Review for further proceedings. The Board of Safety Review is an tndependent
agency @ppointed by the governor with authority to conduct hearings and to issue decisions concerning disputed
satety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty. If we amend the safety order(s) or notification(s) of penalty, your
petition for review shall be deemed moot. However, you will then be given an opportunity to file a petition for
review concerning the amended safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty. -

Please be advised that an employee or representative of employees may file a petition for review to contest
the reasonableness of the time stated m the safety order(s) for the abatement of any violation.

Posting - Upon receipt of any safety order(s) you are required to post such safety order(s), or a copy thereof,
unedited, at or near each place an alleged violation referred to in the safety order(s) occurred. However, if your
operations are such that it 15 not practicable to post the safety order(s)at oz near each place of alleged violation,
such safety order(s) shall be posted, unedited, in a prominent place where it will be readily observable by all
affected employees. For example, if you are engaged in activities which are physically dispersed, the safety
order(s) may be posted at the location from which the employees operate to carry out their activities. You mmst
take steps to ensure that the safety order is not altered, defaced, or covered by other material. Posting shall be
untﬂ the violation is abated, or for three working days, whichever is longer.

Penalties - Penalties are due within fifteen (13) working days of recelpt of this notification unless contested.
Abatement does not constitnte payment of penalties.

Abatement - The conditions cited in the safety order(s) must be corrected (abated) on or before the date shown
for each item on the safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty unless:

(1) You file a petition for review concerning the violation, in which case the full abatement period shail
commence from the issuance of a final decision by the Board of Safety Review or the courts which requires
compliance with the safety order; or :

(2) The abatement period is extended by the granting of a petition for modification of abatemént date.

- PMAS - The petition for modification of abatement date is a manner in which you may seek additional time to
correct (abate) a violation without having to file a petition for review concerning the safety order, or after the
expiration of the fime period to file such a pefition for review when it becomes apparent that you need extra time
to abate the violation. A petition for IﬂOdlﬁCBIIOB of abatement date shall be in writing and shall mclude the

following mformatlon :

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty _ Page 2of 1l . I0SHA-2(Rey. 7/'99)-



(1) All steps you have taken, and the dates of such actions, in an effort to achieve compliance during the
prescribed abatement period. :

(2) The specific additional abaternent time necessary in order to achieve compliance.

(3) The reasons such additional time is necessary, including the unavailability of professional or technical
persomnel or of materials and equipment, or becanse necessary construction or alteration of facilities cannot be
‘completed by the original abatement date. '

(4) All available interim steps being taken to safegnard employees against the cited hazard during the
abatement period. ‘

(5) A certification that a copy of the petition has been posted, and if appropriate, served on the authorized
representative of affected employees, and a certification of the date upon which such posting and service was
made.

' A petition for modification of abatement date shall be filed with the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA
no later than the close of the next working day following the date on which abatement was originaily required.
A later-filed petition shall be accompanied by the employer's statement of exceptional circumstances explaining
the delay. A copy of such petition shall be posted in a conspicuous place where all affected employees will have
notice thereof or near such Jocation where the violation occurred. The petition shall remain posted until the time
period for the filing of a petition for review of the Commissioner's granting or denying the petition expires.
Where affected employees are represented by an authorized representative, said representative shall be served a
copy of such petition. ‘

.Notification of Corrective Action - Correction of the alleged violations which have an abatement period
of thirty (30) days or less should be reported in writing to us promptly upon correction. A. "Letter of Abatement”
form and an "Abatement Photographs” workshect are enclosed for your assistance in providing adequate
documentation of abatement. Reports of corrections should show specific corrective actior on each alleged
violation and the date of such action. On alleged violations with abatement periods of more than thirty (30) days,
a written progress report should be submitted, detailing what has been done, what remains to be done, and the
time needed to fully abate each such violation. When the alleged violation is fully abated, we should be so
advised. Timely correction of an alleged violation does not affect the initial proposed penalty.

- Followup Inspections - Please befadv'ised that a followup inspection may be made for the purpose of
ascertaining _that‘ vou have posted the safety order(s) and corrected the alleged violations. Failure to correct an
alleged violation may result in additional penalties for each day that the violation has not been corrected.

Employer Discrimination Unlawful - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an
employee for filing a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes that he/she
has been discriminated against may {ile a complaint no later than 30 days after the discrimination occurred with
the Indiana Department of Labor/TOSHA at the address shown above.

~Notice to Employees - The law gives an employee or his/her representative the opportunity to object to. any

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty ' Page 3 of 11 IOSHA-2(Rev. 7/99)




abatement date set for a violation if he/she believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed to
the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA at the address shown above within fifteen (15) working days (excluding
weekends and State holidays) or receipt by the employer of this safety order and penalty.

it you wish additional information, you may direct such requests to us at the address or telephone number
stated above.

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty Page 4 of 11 ' . I0SHA-2(Rev. 7/99)



Indiana Department of Labor
Indiana Qgccupational Safety and Health Administration

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE
An informal conference has been scheduled with IOSHA to discuss the Safet_y ordér(s) issued

on 01/30/2013. The conference will be held at the TOSHA dfﬁce located at 402 West

Washington Street, Room W195, Indianapolis, IN 46204 on at

. Employees and/or representatives of employees have a right to attend

an informal conference.
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Indiana Department of Labor Tnspection 316485101

Number:
 Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Inspection Dates:  08/09/2012 -
Administration _ 01/16/2013
Issuance Date: . 01/30/2013

- Safety Order and Notification. of Penalty
Company Name: SSI Services, LL.C
Inspection Site: 3700 South Harding Street, (IPL Harding Street Generating Statlon)
: Indianapolis, IN 46217

Safety Ozxder 1 Item 1 Type of Violation: Serious

I€ 22-8-1.1, Section 2: The employer did not establish and maintain conditions of work which were reasonably safe
and healthful for employees, and free from recognized harards that were causing or likely to cause death or serious
physical harm to employees in that employees were exposed to potential fire, deflagration and/or explosion hazards
caused by the dispersion of combustible dust(s) through the usage of compressed air inside of machinery and/or
equipment:

Indianapolis Power & Light Compeany, Harding Street Generating Station - On or about August 6-7, 2012, employees
used a series of galvanized steel vacunm hoses 1o convey coal dust/powder, a Class I Group F combustible dust, from
the inside of the Unit 7 Pulverizers (Mills) to a Guzzler Model XS4816TC Vacuum Truck. While performing these
cleaning operations, employees used compressed air to blow the coal dust/powder off of the various horizontal and
vertical surfaces located inside of the mills and into the vacuum hose. The use of compressed air for cleaning and/or
removing coal dust/powder could canse significant amounts of coal dust/powder to be dispersed and suspended
throughout the inside of the miils, which could potentially lead to flash fires, deflagrations and/or explosions.

Among other methods, one feasible and acceptable method to correct this hazard is to develop and implement a
written procedure for using compressed air to clean and remove coal dust/powder from the inside of enclosed coal
- pulverizers (mills). This procedure shonld follow all of the applicable requirements listed in Section 8.2.2 of the
National Fire Protection Association's (NFPA) Standard for the Prevention of Fire and Dust Explosions from the
Manufacturing, Processing, and Handling of Combustible Particulate Solids (NFPA 654-2013). Section 8.2.2.4 of
NFPA 654-2013 states that “blow-downs using compressed air or steamn shall be permitted to be used for cleaning
 inaccessible surfaces or surfaces where other methods of cleaning result in a greater personal safety risk. Where
blow-down using compressed air is nsed, the following precautions shall be followed:
(1} Vacuuming, sweeping, or water wash-Gown methods are first used to clean surfaces that can be safely
accessed prior to using compressed air. :
(2) Dust accumulations in the area affer vacmuming, sweepmg, or water wash-down do not exceed the
- threshold dust accumulation.
(3) Compressed air hoses are equipped with pressure relief nozzles hmltmg the discharge gauge pressure to
30 psi (207 kPa) in accordance with the OSHA reqmrements in 29 CER 1910.242(b), “Hand aﬂd Portabie
Power Tools and Equipment, Gensral.”
(4y All electrical equipment potentially exposed to airborne dust in the area meets, as a minimom, the
requirements of NFPA 70, National Elecirical Code, NEMA 12 as defined by NEMA 250: or the equivalent.
(5) All ignition sources and hot surfaces capable of igniting a dust cloud or dust layer are shut down or
removed from the area.” )

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: | 02/26/2013
Proposed Penalty: ' $4,900.00
" Safety Ordér and Notification of Penalty ‘ " IOSHA-2(Rev.
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection 316485101

Number:
Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Tuspection Dates:  08/09/2012 -
Administration 01/16/2013
' ' Issuance Date: 01/30/2013

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty
Company Name: SSI Services, LLC
Inspection Site: 3700 Sounth Harding Street, (IPL Ha:dmg Street Generating Station),
Indianapolis, IN 46217

- Safety Order 1 Tiern 2 Type of Violation: Serious

1C 22-8-1.1, Section 2: The employer did not establish and maintain conditions of work which were reasonably safe

_ and healthful for employees, and free from recognized hazards that were causing or likely to canse death or serious
physical harm to employees in that employses were expesed to potential defiagration and/or explosion hazards becatse
dust collection equipment and/or components that conveyed and collected combustible dust(s) were not designed to

~ prevent or minimize the damage that could potentially occur during a dust deflagration and/or explosion:

'Indianapolis Power & Light Company, Harding Street Generating Station - On or about August 6-7, 2012, employees
used a series of galvanized steel vacuum hoses to convey coal dust/powder, a Class I Group F combustible cust, from
the inside of the Unit 7 Pulverizers (Mills) to a dust collection system located on a Guzzler Model XS4816TC Vacuum
Truck. The dust collection system on the Guzzler Model XS4816TC Vacuum Truck was comprised of components
such as, but not Hmited to, a cyclonic separator (cyclone) followed by a baghouse. Neither the cyclone nor the
baghouse were equipped with explosion protection sach as, but not limited to: explosion (deflagration) venting,
deflagration suppression systems or flame-arresting devices. If a deflagration and/or explosion occurred inside of
either the cyclone or the baghouse, either of these dust collectors (air-material separators) could potentially violently
explode because they were not designed to minirnize the damage that could occur during the deflagration and/or
explosion. ' '

Among other methods, one feasible and ac:ceptable method to correct this hazard is to protect the cyclonic separator
(cyclone) and baghouse in accordance with Section 7.13.1.2.2 of the National Fire Protection Association's (NFPA)

- Standard for the Prevention of Fire and Dust Explosions from the Manufacturing, Processing, and Handling of

Combustible Particulate Solids (NFPA 654-2013). Section 7.13.1.2.2 of NFPA 654-2013 states that “where an
- explosion hazard exists, air-material separators shall be protected in accordance with 7.1.4.” Section.7.1.4.1 of
NFPA 654-2013 states that “the design of explosion protection for equipment shall incorporate one or more of the
following methods of protection:
(1) Oxidant concentration reduction in accordance with NFPA 69, Standard on Explosion Prevention .Sysrems
(2) Where oxygen monitoring is used, it shall be installed in accordance with ISA 84.00. 01, Functional
Safery: Application of Safety Instrumented Systems for the Process Industry Sector.
(b) Where the chemical properties of the material being conveyed require a minimum concentration of
oxygen to control pyrophoricity, that level of concentration shall be maintained.
(2) Deflagration venting in accordance with NFPA 68, Sfandard on Explosion Protecnon by Deﬂagmaon

Venting
(3) Deflagration pressure containment in accordance with NFPA €9, Standard on Exploswn Preventwn
Systems
(4) Deflagration suppressmn systems in accordance with NPPA 09, Srcmdard on Explosion Prevention
‘ Sysrems
safepybrdef and Notification of Penalty  IOSHA2(Rev.

Page 7 of 11 )



Indiana Department of Labor ~ Inspection 316485101

Number: |
. Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Inspection Dates:  08/09/2012 -
Administration © 01/16/2013

Issuance Date: 01/30/2013
Safety Order and Notification of Penalty . '
Company Name:  SSI Services, LLC-
Inspection Site: 3700 South Harding Street, (IPL. Harding Strect Generating Station),
Indianapolis, IN 46217

(5) Dilution with a noncombustible dust to render the mixture noncombustible (See 7.1.4.2.)
(6) Deflagration venting through a listed dust retention and flame-arresting device.”

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 02/26/2013
Proposed Penalty: L . $4,900.00

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty IOSHA-2(Rev.
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection 316485101

: , - Number: :
Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Inspection Dates:  08/09/2012 -
Administration _ 01/16/2013

: Issuance Date: 01/30/2013

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty '

Company Name: SSI Services, LLC

Tnspection Site: 3700 South Harding Street, (IPL Harding Street Generating Statlon}
Indiznapolis, IN 46217

The alleged violations below have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that may increase
the potentlal for iflness or mjury resultmg from ap accident.

Safety Order 1 Ttem 3a Type of Violation: Sermus

29 CFR 1910.132(a): Protective equipment was not used when necessary whenever hazards capable of causmg
injury and impairment were encountered:

Indjanapol_is Power & Light Company, Harding Street Generating Station - On or about August 6-7, 2012,
employees who used a series of galvanized steel vacuum hoses to convey coal dust/powder, a Class I Group F
combustible dust, from the inside of the Unit 7 Pulverizers (Mills) to a Guzzler Model XS4816TC Vacuum Truck
were not required and did not wear flame-resistant clothing (FRC) or flame-resistant garments (FRGs}).

ABATEMENT NOTE: Any flame-resistant clothing (FRC) or flame-resistant garments (FRGs) purchased or
used by the employer should meet all applicable requirements listed in the National Fire Protection Association's
(NFPA) Standard on Flame-Resistani Garments for Protection of Indusirial Personnel Against Fl’ash Fzre (NFPA
2112-2012).

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 02/26/2013
Proposed Penalty: _ $4,900.00

Safety Order 1 Ttem.3b Type of Viclation: ~ Serious

29 CFR 1910.132(d)(1): The employer did not assess the workplace to determine if hazards were present, o-r
were likely to be present, which necessitated the use of personal protective equipment (PPE):

~ Indianapolis Power & Light Company, Harding Street Generating Stanon The Personal Protective Eguipment
(PPE) Hazard Assessment for the cleaning operations performed inside of the Unit 7 Pulverizers (Mills) did not
specifically stats what types of PPE were required to be worn. The PPE Hazard Assessment also did not

" specifically address why PPE was needed and when PPE was required to be worn. The PPE Hazard Assessment
also did not-discuss the potential flash fire, deflagration and explosion hazards created by coal dust/powder, &
Class II Group F combustible dust. ‘

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: _ _ 02/26/2013
Safety Order and Nofification of Penalty , 10SHA-2(Rev.
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection 316485101

Number: ,
Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Inspection Dates:  08/09/2012 -
Administration. 01/16/2013
‘ ‘ Issuance Date: 01/30/2013

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty
Company Name: SSI Services, LLC
~ Inspection Site: 3700 South Harding Street, ([PL Harding Street Generating Station),
Indianapolis, IN 46217

Safsty Order 2 Ttemn 1 T¥pe of Viokaton: ~ Knowing

IC 22-8-1.1, Section 2: 'The employer did not establish and maintain conditions of work which were reasonably
safe and healthful for employees, and free from recognized hazards that were causing or likely to cause death or
serious physical harm to employees in that employees were exposed to potential fire, deflagration and/or explosmn
hazards caused by inadequate control of sources of ignition such as, but not limited to, static electricity:

Indianapolis Power & Light Company, Harding Street Generating Station - On or about August 6-7, 2012,
employees used a series of galvanized steel vacunm hases to convey coal dust/powder, a Class 1T Group T
combustible dust, from the inside-of the Unit 7 Pulverizers (Mills) to a Guzzler Model XS4816TC Vacunm Trmck.
Prior to cleaning operations commencing insice of the Unit 7 Mills, employees did not test or verify that all of the
conductive components (hoses, etc.) on and attached to the vacuam truck were effectively bonded and grounded.
Atthough the vacuum truck was grounded, employees did not test or verify that the coatinuity of the grounding path
was sufficient and continnous. Employees also did not test or verify that the vacuum hoses, which were comnected
together using a combination of raincoats and/or Tyvex suits and significant quantities of duct tape, were
effectively bonded together. The ineffectively grounded and bonded vacuum truck and its components (hoses, etc. )
could potentlally allow a static electric charge(s) to accumulate while collecting, removing and conveying the coal -
dust from the mills to the dust collection system on the vacuum fruck. The stored stafic electric charge produced
while collecting, removing and conveying the coal dust conld potentially ignite any settled or moving coal
dust/powder inside of the vacuum hoses or other enclosed structures (zoills, vacuum truck, etc.).

Among other methods, one feasible and acceptablé method to correct this hazard is to follow the requirements
listed in the National Fire Protection Association's (NFPA) Standard for the Prevention of Fire and Dust
Explosions from the Manufacturing, Processing, and Handling of Combustible Particulate Solids (NFPA 654-2013).
Section 8.2.3 of NFPA 654-2013 states that “portzble vacuum cleaners that meet the following minimum
requiremeris shall be permitted to be nsed to collect combustibie particulate solids:

(1) Materials of construction shall comply with 7.13.2 and 9.3.2.

(2) Hoses shall be conductive or static disstpative.

(3) All conductive components, including wands and attachments, shall be bonded and grounded.

" (4) Dust-laden air shall not pass through the fan or blower.

(5) Electrical motors shall not be in the dust laden air stream umless hsted for Class 1T, Division 1

locations.

(6) When liguids or wet matenal are plcked up by the vacuum cleaner, paper filter elements shall not be

nsed.

(7) Vacunm cleaners used for metal dusts shall meet the requirements of NFPA 484, Standard for

Combustible Metals.”
- Amex A (A.8.3.2.1) of NFPA 654-2013 states that “these requ;rements fo:r portable vacumm cleaners should be
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Indiama Department of Labor Inspection 316485101

: N Number:
Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Inspection Dates:  08/09/2012 -
Administration 01/16/2013
Issuance Date: 01/30/2013

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: SSI Services, LLC -

Inspection Site: * 3700 South Harding Street, ([PL Harding Street Generating Stafion),
. Indianapolis, IN 46217

applied to the use of vacuum trucks for combustible dust as well." Information on controliing the hazards
associated with the generation, accumulation and discharge of static electricity can also be found in NFPA's
Recommended Practice on Static Electricity (NFPA 77-2007).

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: - 02/26/2013 -
Proposed Penalty: $56,000.00
z /m A —
// Directo/r/industri Compliance
N
Safety Order and Notification of Penalty ‘ - IOSHA-2(Rev.
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Indiana Department of Labor |

Indiana Occupational Safety and Heelth Administration
402 West Washington Street :

Room W195

Indianapolis, IN 46204- 2751

Phone: 317/232-1979 Fax: 317/233-8509

INVOICE/DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Company Name: SSI Services, LLC
Inspection Site: 3700 South Harding Street, (IPL Tlarding Strest Generating Station), Indianapolis, IN 46217
Tssuance Date: 01/30/2013

Swmmary of Penalties for Inspection Number 316485101

Safety Order 01, Serious = \ $14,700.00
Safety Order 02, Knowing = $56,000.00
Total Proposed Penalties $70,700.00

- Penalties are due within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of this notification vnless contested. Make your check or
- money order payable to: "Indiana DOL/JJOSHA®". Please indicate IOSHA's Inspectlon Number (indicated above) on
the rermttance .

IOSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check or money order for less
than fuli amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these restrictions, conditions, or endorsements do
exist. ' .

Corrective action, taken by you for each alleged xdolaﬁon should be submitted to this office on or about the abatemen!
dates indicated on the Safety Order and Notification of Penalty.

- A work sheet has been provided to assist in providing the required abatement information, A completed copy of this
work sheet should e/p'?JS’ied at the worksite with the safety order(s).

@ / Al A _ t6%50/ ?{7/’3

D]Iecto Industmal ompliance

/
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